
AGENDA

ACCESS JOINT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 19th September, 2018, at 11.00 am Ask for: Joel Cook

Islington Town Hall - Committee Room 4, 
Islington Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD

Telephone 03000 416892

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting in the meeting room

Membership 

Cllr Andrew Reid - Chairman (Suffolk CC), Cllr Richard Stogdon - Vice-Chairman (East 
Sussex CC),Cllr Adrian Axford (Isle of Wight), Cllr Susan Barker (Essex CC), Mr Jeremy 
Hunt (West Sussex CC), Cllr Mark Kemp-Gee (Hampshire CC), Cllr Graham Lawman 
(Northamptonshire CC), Cllr Judy Oliver (Norfolk CC), Cllr Terry Rogers (Cambridgeshire 
CC), Cllr Ralph Sangster (Hertfordshire) Mr Charlie Simkins (Kent CC)  

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Apologies/Substitutes 
Apologies Substitutes LA

2. Declaration of interests in items on the agenda 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018 (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Board Representation  [11:05 - 11:15] (Pages 7 - 14)

5. Business Plan and Budget - quarterly update  [11:15 - 11:25] (Pages 15 - 24)

6. Motion to Exclude the Press and Public 
That, under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 & 5 of part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.



EXEMPT ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to not be open to the 

public)

7. Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018 (Pages 25 - 28)

8. Hymans Update - Review of Progress  [11:30 - 11:50] (Pages 29 - 44)

9. ACS Establishment Update: Tranche 1 FCA Application, Tranches 
2 & 3 sub-funds and Phase 2 update  [11:50 - 12:30] 

(Pages 45 - 62)

Lunch  [12:30 - 13:00]
10. Stock lending update  [13:00 - 13:45] (Pages 63 - 98)

11. Governance arrangements update  [13:45 - 14:00] (Pages 99 - 108)

12. ACCESS Support Unit update (s151 Officer meeting)  [14:00 - 
14:45] 

(Pages 109 - 114)

13. MHCLG Autumn progress report  [14:45 - 15:00] (Pages 115 - 148)

14. Items for information or advice from the committee  [15:00 - 15:15] 

15. Date of next meeting 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday 10 December 2018 at 
Islington Town Hall  -  11:00 to 15:00

Joel Cook 
Clerk to the Joint Committee
03000 416892

Tuesday, 11 September 2018



1

ACCESS JOINT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the ACCESS Joint Committee held at Islington Town Hall, 
Upper Street, London, N1 2UD on Monday, 11th June, 2018.

PRESENT: Cllr Andrew Reid - Chairman (Suffolk CC), Cllr Richard Stogdon - Vice-
Chairman (East Sussex CC), Cllr Adrian Axford (Isle of Wight), Cllr Susan Barker (Essex 
CC), Cllr Jeremy Hunt (West Sussex CC), Cllr Mark Kemp-Gee (Hampshire CC), Cllr 
Graham Lawman (Northamptonshire CC), Cllr Terry Rogers (Cambridgeshire CC), Cllr 
Nick Chard substituted for Cllr Charlie Simkins (Kent CC), Cllr Kemp-Gee (Hampshire 
CC), Cllr David Williams (Hertfordshire), Cllr Judy Oliver substituted (Norfolk)

ALSO PRESENT: John Wright (Hymans Robertson), Clifford Sims (Squire Patton Boggs)

OFFICERS: Andrew Boutflower (Hampshire), Joel Cook (Kent), Kay Goldsmith (Kent) 
Nicola Mark (Norfolk), Kevin McDonald (Essex), Alison Mings (Kent), Ola Owolabi (East 
Sussex), Steven Pilsworth (Hertfordshire), Sharon Tan (Suffolk), Jo Thistlewood (Isle of 
Wight), Paul Tysoe (Cambridgeshire), Rachel Wood (West Sussex)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

85. Declaration of interests in items on the agenda.
(Item. 2)

No additional declarations not previously made were received.

86. Minutes of the meeting held on 26 April 2018.
(Item. 3)

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.

87. Feedback from Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association (PLSA) 
Conference  [11:15 - 11:20].
(Item. 4)

(1) Councillor Reid updated the Joint Committee on the PLSA Conference that 
had been held 21 – 23 May 2018. 

(2) The keynote speakers included Rishi Sunak, the Parliamentary Under-
Secretary for Housing, Communities and Local Government. He had spoken about 
the future of pools in a positive and encouraging way, showing good understanding 
of the key issues facing pension fund pools.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2

(3) Teresa Clay, Head of local government pensions at the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), spoke about the Ministry’s focus on 
data, and ensuring that individual funds are in line with expectations. Those that are 
not will be expected to work to bring themselves in line with expectations. There 
appeared to be a difference in expectations between the MHCLG and The 
Pensions Regulator.

RESOLVED that the feedback from the PLSA Conference be noted.

88. Business Plan & Budget  [11:20 - 11:30].
(Item. 5)

(1) Officers from Suffolk and Kent explained that work was ongoing to clarify 
assurance processes for the Committee’s accounts.  Both councils had instructed 
their auditors to look at the ACCESS spend last year in order to seek assurance.  
An update would be provided at the next meeting, when the audits had been 
completed. 

(2) Rachel Wood (West Sussex) updated the Committee on the activities 
undertaken since the last Joint Committee. The 2018/19 budget was based on 
indicative costs that were available at the time and included a contingency.  

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

89. Motion to Exclude the Press and Public.
(Item. 6)

RESOLVED That, under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 3 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

90. Hymans Update  [11:30 - 11:50].
(Item. 7)

(1) John Wright from Hymans Robertson introduced his presentation which had 
been circulated with the agenda. 

RESOLVED that the update on progress and future challenges be noted.

91. Operator Implementation  [11:50 - 12:30].
(Item. 8)

(1) Andrew Boutflower (Hampshire) updated the Committee on the progress of 
finalising the ACS prospectus, Link’s proposal for the second tranche of sub-funds 
and a contract clarification in relation to fees.

(2) Karl Midl (Director) and Eamonn Gough (Senior Relationship Manager) from 
Link presented an update.

Page 4



3

RESOLVED that;
a) ACCESS make recommendations to the administering authorities that the 

contract clarification be agreed;
b) The second tranche of sub-funds, as proposed by the operator, be noted;
c) The progress in finalising that ACS prospectus be noted.

92. Update on Governance Manual arrangements  [13:00 - 14:00].
(Item. 9)

(1) Nicola Mark (Norfolk) updated the Committee on the development of the 
ACCESS governance framework. The Committee discussed the various 
documents in development, providing feedback and making suggestions for 
amendments.

(2) Future review of the Inter-Authority Agreement was discussed, with 
comments from Members regarding maintaining clear records of the committee’s 
powers and responsibilities.  It was agreed that further work on the IAA review 
would be progressed.
  
RESOLVED that; 

a) progress on producing the Governance Manual be noted;
b) a review of the IAA be undertaken, with a primary focus on updating 

terminology and improving clarity.
c) the combined training session for Members and Officers on roles and 

responsibilities in relation to the ACCESS Pool be approved.
d) other aspects of Phase 3 work would be further developed by Officers, in 

consultation the Chair, for further consideration by the Committee at a future 
meeting.

e) any additional spend required for continued Governance work, prior to the 
next Committee meeting, to be identified and approved by Nicola Mark 
(Norfolk), in consultation with the Chair.

93. Update on ACCESS Support Unit and s151 Officers  [14:00 - 14:45].
(Item. 10)

(1) Nicola Mark (Norfolk) outlined the structure for the ACCESS Support Unit 
(ASU), explaining the proposal for the Committee’s consideration.

RESOLVED that;

a) the proposed structure of the ACCESS Support Unit be approved;
b) the proposal for Essex County Council to become the host authority for 

ACCESS be agreed (pending development of the ASU);
c) The request for Essex County Council (as future Hosting Authority) to 

commence recruitment for the hosted roles be agreed.

94. Items for information or advice from the committee  [14:45 - 15:00].
(Item. 11)

Page 5



4

(1) Kevin McDonald (Essex) explained that the Local Authority Pension 
Fund (LAPF) Investment Awards for local authority pension funds were accepting 
entries until 15 June 2018, including one award for “Pool of the Year”. The awards 
ceremony would be held on 20 September 2018. 

RESOLVED that an LAPF award entry be developed and entered on their behalf by 
Mr McDonald.

95. Date of next meeting.
(Item. 12)

RESOLVED that the date of the next meeting be noted.

Page 6



1

Agenda Item No: 4

Scheme Member and / or Local 
Pension Board Representation on 

the Joint Committee 

Joint Committee

Date: 19 September 2018

Report by: Officers Working Group

Subject: Scheme Member and / or Local Pension Board 
Representation on the Joint Committee

Purpose of the 
Report:

To update the Joint Committee on current guidance and discussion 
with regards to scheme member and Local Pension Board (LPB) 
representation on investment pool governance structures.

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to:

1) Consider whether it wishes to propose any changes to 
representation on the Joint Committee to incorporate 
scheme member and/or LPB member representatives 
either as observers or voting members

2) If the Committee does wish to make changes, to seek the 
approval of the constituent ACCESS Authorities for those 
changes and request the Inter-Authority Agreement is 
updated accordingly.

Enquiries to:
Name – Mark Whitby
Tel – 07990 556197
E-mail – mwhitby@northamptonshire.gov.uk

1. Purpose.

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to update the Joint Committee on current guidance and 
national/local discussions with regards to scheme member and Local Pension Board 
(LPB) representation on investment pool governance structures.

2. Background 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

2.1 The ACCESS Joint Committee is currently formed of the Chairman of each of the 
constituent Funds or their substitute. The current governance structure does not 
specifically allow for representation from either scheme members or LPB members, 
although the Inter-Authority Agreement does allow the Joint Committee to co-opt any 
person whom it thinks fit to be a non-voting member of the Committee.

2.2 Scheme member representation was previously considered by the then Shadow Joint 
Committee on 14th December 2016. It was agreed that scheme member representation 
on the Joint Committee was not necessary as meetings would be held in public, enabling 
the attendance of member representatives. In practice, a significant proportion of Joint 
Committee agendas have necessarily been held in private session.

2.3 There have been recent discussions and statements in respect of the governance 
arrangements in relation to investment pooling including:

 The latest guidance from the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) on scheme  
member representation in investment pool governance structures

 Following the CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham Local Pension Board Conference of 
27 June 2018 wherein the role of the LPB representatives in investment pool 
governance was debated

 Local pressure more generally from unions and certain LPBs, increasing in light 
of the above.

2.4 The above relates to scheme member representation and / or Local Pension Board 
representation and this report considers these items in turn.

3. SAB guidance on investment pool governance

3.1 The SAB have issued a revised statement on investment pool governance following 
their meeting of 16 February, attached in full at Appendix 1.

3.2 The key part of the statement is extracted below (revised parts in bold): 

“The board recognises that strategic decisions on asset allocations and responsible 
investment will remain at the local level and therefore the involvement via local 
pension boards of those employers beyond the scheme manager along with member 
representatives in those areas would continue. However the Board would expect that 
scheme managers involve those same employers and member representatives in 
assisting with the assurance of transparent reporting from pools and ensuring the 
effective implementation of strategies by pools. Such involvement should include the 
consideration of provision of direct representation on oversight structures. In line with 
the UK Corporate Governance Code principle of ‘comply or explain’, any pool 
making a decision to exclude member representatives from their formal 
oversight structures should publish this decision and formally report the 
reasons to the local pension boards which the pool serves.”

3.3 The SAB are asking pools to consider the involvement of LPB representatives on pool 
oversight structures such as the Joint Committee, and explicitly recommending that 
pools comply or explain if they exclude scheme member representatives. 

Page 8



3

4. CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham Local Pension Board Conference

4.1 The matter of LPB representation on pool governance structures was debated at the 
CIPFA/Barnett Waddingham Local Pension Board Conference on 27th June 2018.This 
event was timed for the third anniversary of the creation of LPBs and enabled the sharing 
of experiences by LPB members and discussion of key issues.

4.2 CIPFA provided feedback on the event and summarised the LPB representation debate. 
Whilst LPBs were cautious about getting involved in decision making roles there was 
support for an observer role. A full note of this debate, as provided directly by CIPFA, is 
attached at Appendix 2.

4.3 The observer role is known to be operational in two pools, Brunel and Northern, with the 
former, for example, having two LPB scheme member representatives democratically 
elected by all LPB members of the Brunel Funds. The CIPFA note does, however, 
recognise the different pool models makes prescribing a common solution difficult.

4.4 The variability of information flows was also discussed at the Conference, particularly 
with regards to access to confidential papers and the ability to observe exempt agenda 
items at Section 101 Committees. Within the ACCESS pool this should not be an issue 
as all LPBs have direct access to such information either automatically or on request 
through the sharing of minutes/papers and updates. 

4.5 In addition, the Inter-Authority Agreement acknowledges that “Each Council has 
overview and scrutiny committees which have the right to scrutinise the Operation of the 
Joint Committee and the Joint Committee and the Host Authority will co-operate with 
reasonable requests for information from any of the Councils’ overview and scrutiny 
committees”.  

5. Local pressures

5.1 From the onset of pooling there has been pressure from various stakeholders within 
certain constituent Funds to allow scheme member representation on the Joint 
Committee.

5.2 This has been evident during discussions at Section 101 Committees, LPBs and during 
direct discussions with unions. Generally the ACCESS pool has been able to point to 
the balance of decision making power between the pool and the constituent funds which 
has alleviated to some extent the need for scheme member representation.

5.2 However, the SAB guidance and national discussion around scheme member and LPB 
member representation has changed the landscape and intensified the pressure for 
change to investment pool governance models. Locally both the Cambridgeshire LPB 
(as a whole) and the East Sussex LPB Chairman have requested the issue of 
representation should be raised with the Joint Committee.

5.3 Note that this request includes consideration as to whether any LPB representative on 
the Joint Committee should be elected from one of the Chairmen of the ACCESS LPBs 
(i.e. who may not necessarily also be a scheme member representative).

Page 9



4

6 Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA)

6.1 Any changes to representation on the Joint Committee would require agreement of the 
constituent ACCESS Authorities and amendment to the IAA.

7. Recommendation

7.1 The Committee is asked to:

1) Consider whether it wishes to propose any changes to representation on the Joint 
Committee to incorporate scheme member and/or LPB member representatives 
either as observers or voting members

2) If the Committee does wish to make changes, to seek the approval of the constituent 
ACCESS Authorities for those changes and request the Inter-Authority Agreement is 
updated accordingly.

8. Background papers

8.1 Appendix 1: SAB statement on investment pool governance

8.2 Appendix 2: LPB Conference 27th June 2018 – Summary of discussion on LPB role 
around pooling

Page 10



5

Appendix 1: SAB statement on investment pool governance

At its meeting on the 16th February 2018, the SAB agreed to review the wording of the 
policy statement on pool governance previously published on 23rd March 2017. The 
following statement was subsequently agreed (revised text shown in bold) –

“The Board recognises that it is for scheme managers within each pool to develop 
appropriate governance to assure all stakeholders of the transparent and effective 
implementation of strategy. In this respect the Board notes the comments made by the then 
Local Government minister Marcus Jones MP on this matter in the Westminster Hall debate 
on 24th October 2016.

The board recognises that strategic decisions on asset allocations and responsible 
investment will remain at the local level and therefore the involvement via local pension 
boards of those employers beyond the scheme manager along with member 
representatives in those areas would continue. However the Board would expect that 
scheme managers involve those same employers and member representatives in assisting 
with the assurance of transparent reporting from pools and ensuring the effective 
implementation of strategies by pools. Such involvement should include the consideration of 
provision of direct representation on oversight structures. In line with the UK Corporate 
Governance Code principle of ‘comply or explain’, any pool making a decision to 
exclude member representatives from their formal oversight structures should 
publish this decision and formally report the reasons to the local pension boards 
which the pool serves.”

Page 11

https://hansard.parliament.uk/Commons/2016-10-24/debates/A7FADB91-3C81-4C9D-A6C9-791C57EEC3B2/LocalGovernmentPensionScheme?highlight=pools#contribution-2A0D5826-0F29-450D-A4C6-DAA98C500D1C


6

Appendix 2: LPB Conference 27th June 2018 – Summary of discussion on LPB role 
around pooling 

It was agreed that a summary of the discussion on the LPB role in pooling would be 
provided to delegates which they could then use with their Boards and to Bob Holloway to 
feedback to him as in order to attend the meeting of the Scheme Advisory Board he had not 
been able to remain for the debate
 
The discussion was stimulated following a presentation by Bob on the role of the Local 
Pension Boards (LPB) in pooling and covered the role that the Board members felt they 
should have.
 
The debate centred on whether the LPB should have representation in the pool governance 
structure. The following is a summary of the points raised by delegates:
 
Points Raised
 
The LPB role is to scrutinise the Committee so they should not be involved in pooling 
directly. This should work well as long as the Committee Chair is active in the pooling 
structure and communicates well with the Fund/Board.
 
Not concerned about being represented on the Board, but on giving good advice. The issue 
is how to give value and consistent advice if Boards do not talk to other Boards in the pool. 

Some delegates felt that Boards should be positioned so they can with a reasonable degree 
of confidence gain assurances, perhaps as a group of Boards/Chairs within the Pool, that 
the Joint Governance Committee (or equivalent body) is adhering to its own Terms of 
Reference and other agreed procedures.
 
There is a need for clarity in the administering authority/pool governance structures to 
define who is responsible for what so that the LPB know who they are scrutinising and who 
should provide assurances they seek.
 
LPB role is to assist the Scheme manager so they should support the committee but if they 
are not involved in the pool how can they offer assistance? Central Pool LPB’s have got 
together to share views on the Pool which was a popular idea.
 
It is important who LPBs feedback to. Having a seat from a group of chairs would allow a 
collective view to be heard and would be better than one Fund raising the point.
 
It took a long time to get LPBs and now the goal posts have moved. As the Pool manages 
scheme members’ assets the scheme members should be involved with a vote although 
that would need to be by the right person with knowledge / so that members are 
remembered. 

Specifically London CIV should have a credit rating to assess their risk
. 
LPB members are volunteers and should not be running operations. Not all are experts. The 
issue is all about good governance. 

Page 12



7

A popular view was that the role is to scrutinise so they cannot be part of the decision 
making i.e. part of the pool structure.
 
The position as an observer was also a popular view although it was clear this meant 
different things to different people in terms of whether the observer role was active or 
passive. Again getting LPB chairs in Pools together was popular to feedback to Committees 
and this also linked with the scheme member point being on a Pool Board as someone to 
share those views. 

Some felt that as pools are mandatory then it is more important for the LPB to have a role 
but to be effective they needed to be expert. There was concern that the London pool was 
too big and the voice of the member will be lost. Members should have a role in the pool to 
know what is going on with their money.

Brunel explained they have two scheme members as observers on the Pool Oversight 
Board who were existing LPB scheme member representatives and democratically elected 
by all the LPB members. LPB members from all the Funds meet and feed into them. LPBs 
can work together on Funds in a pool to get member representation. 

There was a feeling that in some cases the LPB were more expert than the Committee as 
some Committees had significant turnover and had no idea what pooling was about. 

Again the view that LPB members should not be involved with decision making was 
supported. It was suggested that LPBs could comment on any concerns on the Pool 
governance arrangements in their Annual Report. Picking up on these reports MHCLG or 
SAB could issue guidance on the role of LPBs with regard to pools. There was also a view 
that SAB should comment on capability of Committees in terms of experience i.e. the 
turnover issue. 

There was also concern that some Committees still exclude LPB members for private 
agenda items although this practice was variable – did the recent survey pick up on this and 
could guidance be issued? 

There was view that pooling was effectively privatising scheme member assets with no way 
to scrutinise it and LPB members should resist this. 

In the USS Board members are well paid, on a smaller scale should LPB members be paid 
to raise standards? 

It was recognised that the London CIV had the biggest challenge with 32 Funds but whilst 
difficult they should still try and work together and get the LPB Chairs to collaborate, 
perhaps LGA/London Councils could facilitate? 

Could the regulations be amended to establish an Oversight Committees and their role? 
It was not the role of the LPB to check if the operator is doing the right thing. It is the role of 
the LPB to review that the administering authority is managing the operator properly and a 
route to do this should be found. 

Page 13



8

Summary 

Overall the view appeared to be that LPBs should be very cautious about getting involved in 
decision making roles and the focus should be on scrutinising how the 
Committee\administering authority is managing the pool. 

There was support for an observer role and this is clearly working well in some Pools; it was 
felt that attending in person can provide a different understanding and view of what they 
mean than reading the reports and minutes. 

There was interest in the idea of the LPB chairs within each pool meeting as is already 
practiced by some although London may need to meet in smaller groups. 

The different Pool models makes prescribing a solution difficult. There needs to be a clear 
process for making Pools accountable but in a free market environment this could be 
restrictive.

Page 14



Business Plan and Budget 
Quarterly Update

Joint Committee

Date: 19 September 2018

Report by: Officers Working Group

Subject: Business Plan and Budget Quarterly Update 

Purpose of the Report:
To provide an update on the activities undertaken since the last Joint 
Committee. 

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to:

1. Note the update
2. Agree the additional forecast to the budget 

Enquiries to: Rachel Wood (rachel.wood@westsussex.gov.uk // 0330 222 3387)

1. Purpose.

1.1 The Joint Committee is required to make recommendations to the ACCESS Authorities about 
the annual strategic business plan for the Pool. The strategic plan was agreed by the Joint 
Committee in April 2018 and has now been referred to the relevant ACCESS Authorities. 

1.2 The Joint Committee also agreed the budget necessary to implement the business plan 
(insofar as the costs will not be paid by ACCESS Authorities direct to the Operator) at their 
meeting in April 2018 and this will be charged to the relevant ACCESS Authorities. 

1.3 This report updates the Joint Committee on the work undertaken. 

2. Business Plan Update  

2.1 The table on the following page shows progress against key items anticipated to be delivered 
since the last Joint Committee. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:rachel.wood@westsussex.gov.uk


Key Milestone Update Status 
Consider Legal Entity
Consider the benefits and drawback of legal 
entity model for ACCESS pool. 

Completed 
Green

Approve Sub-Fund Tranche 1
Ensure initial sub-fund meets Link’s due 
diligence requirements and ACCESS 
Authorities value for money criteria 
(including transition activity). 

Completed 
Green

FCA Approval for Initial Sub-Fund
Work with Link to submit application to the 
FCA for approval of the ACCESS ACS and  
initial sub-fund set-up. 

Completed in August (later than the original 
June 2018 date due to due diligence required 
on the documents supporting the 
application to the FCA).


Green

Approve Sub-Fund Tranche 2 and Tranche 3
Ensure subsequent sub-funds meet 
Operator’s due diligence requirements and 
participating Authorities value for money 
criteria (including transition activity). 

Drafting of relevant Schedules for each sub-
fund underway by Link. 

However FCA application now due 25 
September and FCA approval now due on 23 
October and Sub Fund Launch due on 23 
January 2019, which is one month behind 
the original schedule. 

Tranche 3 Sub-Funds to be agreed with Link 
with FCA application to be made by 11 
December, FCA approval due on 12 February 
and Sub Fund Launch due on 10 April 2019, 
which is two months behind the original 
schedule.

Status shown as red based on the original 
Business Plan agreed by the JC. Project 
Management is now against the revised 
dates shown above and the status is showing 
as green against the re-forecasted dates. 


Red

Determine Phase 2 Sub-Funds
Joint Committee agree sub-fund 
requirements for Phase 2 following Officer 
consideration 

Work underway with proposal to be 
considered by the Joint Committee 
elsewhere on the agenda relating to global 
and UK equities. 

Please Note: It was original anticipated that 
the Joint Committee would agree Phase 2 
Sub-Funds in November 2018 and Link 
would apply for FCA approval of the Phase 2 
sub-funds in January 2019. The application 
for Phase 2 sub-funds will follow the 
completion of Phase 1 Tranche 3 (now 
planned to be submitted in December 2018). 


Amber

Agree ACCESS Support Unit
Identify ASU resource requirements, roles 
and responsibilities for activities and draft 
job description and recruitment process.

Agreement by Joint Committee to roles and 
responsibilities and draft role profiles in line 
with plan (June 2018) and Essex County 
Council as Host Authority have subsequently 


Amber

Page 16



determined the recruitment process for the 
ASU. 

Advert for Programme Director has been 
published with applications due by 10 
September but unlikely that appointment of 
permanent ASU will be completed by 
October 2018 as originally planned. 

Complete Governance Manual
Work with external advisers to reflect 
decision making principles, communication 
strategy, policies and procedures, code of 
conduct etc in the Governance Manual

Additional work in respect of the 
Governance Manual and Inter Authority 
Agreement has resulted in a delay to the 
completion of the Manual. However this has 
limited impact on work elsewhere, which 
has been able to progress. 


Amber 

2.3 In addition to the above, it is anticipated that the following activities will be started over the 
next quarter: 

 Contract and Operations Manuals to be formalised to assist with the management of 
the Operator Contract and the ACS sub funds investment process   

 Determination of reporting requirements at both Pool level and for participating 
Authorities.

 Review of the Inter Authority Agreement. 

3. Budget Update

3.1 The costs set out in the 2018/19 budget were indicative based on the understanding of the 
resource requirements at the time of setting the original budget. 

3.2 In line with the terms of the Inter Authority Agreement, Kent County Council (as Host 
Authority at commencement) has invoiced each Council £105,000 as their estimated share of 
the costs budgeted for the 2018/19 financial year. 

3.3 The table below compares the original budget with the current forecast. The following points 
are made: 

 The forecast for Strategic and Technical advice has increased by 15% reflecting the 
additional work incurred to date relating to the Prospectus and FCA application and 
the Communication Strategy work which has been commissioned.

 The additional forecasted spend on legal advice relates to the Inter Authority review. 
 Project Management and Client Unit costs have increased due to the inclusion of an 

additional month for interim support whilst the permanent Client Unit takes over to 
Business as Usual. 

 The original budget figure for governance advice has been increased reflecting work 
commissioned. 

 Additional forecast expenditure has been included for sub-fund manager selection 
(which is subject to discussion elsewhere on the agenda) and client unit recruitment. 

 

Page 17



 

4. Risks 

4.1 A full risk matrix is appended to the main Business Plan and risks which have an amber or red 
status are summarised below. Further details are in Appendix 1: 

Risk Update Status

Page 18



Permanent ACCESS Support Unit (ASU)
Interim ASU arrangements put in place until 
October 2018, with action to handover to 
the permanent ASU function included in the 
project planning. 

The interim arrangement will be required 
after October 2018. 

Essex County Council as Host Authority are 
targeting mid-September to early October to 
interview for the permanent ASU roles. 


Red

Establishment phase resource
A substantial amount of Officer resource will 
be required to support the project plan work 
streams / tasks etc.  This could result in 
delays or increased cost if resources are 
constrained.  

Unchanged from previous meeting but 
increased to red due to budget implications. 

OWG meetings were reverted to monthly to 
reduce demand on Officer time and 
delegation was given to progressing 
activities to sub-groups. 


Red

Decision making
There is a risk that Funds / JC do not agree 
on key decisions around asset pooling (sub-
funds / investment managers) / governance 
etc. This could lead to delays in FCA 
application, strategic decisions etc which 
could cause project delays and missed 
milestones.

Unchanged from previous meeting.

To date, funds have agreed unanimously to 
proceed with Phase 1 sub-funds. The 
approach adopted for Phase 2 is subject to 
consideration by the Joint Committee.

The Governance Manual is being finalised. 


Amber

Sub-fund / ACS Establishment - Seeding 
process
The initial seeding / ongoing management 
process has not yet been tested and it is 
uncertain how this process will work in 
practice.  

Unchanged from previous meeting.

The risk remains at Amber until the first sub-
fund is launched to test the seeding process.


Amber

Conflicting requirements
Due to the number of parties involved in 
ACCESS, there may be conflicting 
requirements for the new funds which could 
delay approvals and impact the timeline.

Unchanged from previous meeting.

To date, funds have agreed unanimously to 
proceed with Phase 1 sub-funds. The 
approach adopted for Phase 2 is subject to 
consideration by the Joint Committee.


Amber

Sub-fund / ACS Establishment - Optimal 
sub-fund design
It is critical that ACCESS is able to 
demonstrate the benefits of pooling (VFM / 
cost savings).  There is a risk that Funds may 
incur higher costs overall than they do 
currently for investing in specific sub-funds, 
once in the Pool.

Although there has been unanimous 
agreement proceed with Phase 1 sub-funds 
concerns have been raised around value for 
money which is covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 


Amber

S151 Officer engagement
S151 Officers are responsible for the proper 
administration of their local authority’s 
financial affairs, including the LGPS Fund and 
therefore their input is important for the 
progress of the pool. 

S151 Meeting held on 25 May and 25 July 
with next meeting to be held on. 

Remains on amber until future meetings 
agreed. 


Amber

5. Recommendation

Page 19



5.1 That the Joint Committee:

a) Notes the update. 
b) Agrees the additional forecast to the budget 

6. Consultation with Key Advisers

6.1 Hymans Robertson have been appointed to provide general / project support and technical 
advice to the ACCESS pool. 

7. Background Papers

None

8. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Issue Summary (Exempt – Commercially Sensitive)

Page 20



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018
	4 Board Representation  [11:05 - 11:15]
	5 Business Plan and Budget - quarterly update  [11:15 - 11:25]
	Business Plan and Budget - Appendix 1 Issues Summary

	7 Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2018
	8 Hymans Update - Review of Progress  [11:30 - 11:50]
	9 ACS Establishment Update: Tranche 1 FCA Application, Tranches 2 & 3 sub-funds and Phase 2 update  [11:50 - 12:30]
	ACCESS_19 Sept JC_PHASE 2 SUBFUND SLIDES

	10 Stock lending update  [13:00 - 13:45]
	ACCESS Sec Lending Review Final - Mercer report

	11 Governance arrangements update  [13:45 - 14:00]
	18-09-19 JC Governance update report Appendix A FCA Press Release
	18-09-19 JC Governance Update report Appendix B Host Auth and ASU

	12 ACCESS Support Unit update (s151 Officer meeting)  [14:00 - 14:45]
	13 MHCLG Autumn progress report  [14:45 - 15:00]

